
 

Download this agenda via the free modern.gov app on your iPad, Android Device 
or Blackberry Playbook.  For information relating to this meeting or to request a 

copy in another format or language please contact: 
Amanda Coote, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  

 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk - www.torbay.gov.uk  

(1) 

 
 

Wednesday, 6 January 2021 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

A meeting of Licensing Sub-Committee will be held on 
 

Thursday, 14 January 2021 
 

commencing at 9.30 am 
 

The meeting will be held remotely via Zoom (the links to the meeting are set out below) 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83862540117?pwd=elFNd0g1NS9mRVJpSW02L1FBd2dtdz09  
 
Meeting ID: 838 6254 0117 
Passcode: 388022 
One tap mobile 
+442034815240,,83862540117#,,,,,,0#,,388022# United Kingdom 
+442039017895,,83862540117#,,,,,,0#,,388022# United Kingdom 
 
Dial by your location 
        +44 203 481 5240 United Kingdom 
        +44 203 901 7895 United Kingdom 
 
Meeting ID: 838 6254 0117 
Passcode: 388022 

 
 

Members of the Committee 

Councillor Ellery 

Councillor Kavanagh 

 

Councillor Barbara Lewis 

 

 

 

Together Torbay will thrive 

https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
mailto:governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83862540117?pwd=elFNd0g1NS9mRVJpSW02L1FBd2dtdz09


(2) 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 
1.   Election of Chairman/woman  
 To elect a Chairman/woman for the meeting. 

 
2.   Apologies  
 To receive apologies for absence, including notifications of any 

changes to the membership of the Committee. 
 

3.   Declarations of interests 
 

 

(a)   To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question.  A completed disclosure of interests form should 
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

(b)   To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect 
of items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item.  However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public 
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not 
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter.  A 
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the 
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any 
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance 
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 
 

4.   Urgent items  
 To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 
5.   Consideration of the fit and proper status of the holder of a 

dual Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers’ Licence 
(Pages 4 - 19) 

 To consider the submitted report in respect of a dual holder of a 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers’ Licence. 
 

 Instructions for the press and public for joining the meeting  
 If you are using an iPad you will need to install Zoom which can be 

found in the App Store.  You do not need to register for an account 
just install the software.  You only need to install the software once.  
For other devices you should just be taken direct to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 

 



(3) 

 Joining a Meeting  
 Click on the link provided on the agenda above and follow the 

instructions on screen.  If you are using a telephone, dial the Zoom 
number provided above and follow the instructions.  (Note: if you 
are using a landline the call will cost up to 13p per minute and from 
a mobile between 3p and 55p if the number is not covered by your 
inclusive minutes.) 
 
You will be placed in a waiting room, when the meeting starts the 
meeting Host will admit you.  Please note if there are technical 
issues this might not be at the start time given on the agenda. 
 
Upon entry you will be muted and your video switched off so that 
only the meeting participants can been seen. When you join the 
meeting the Host will unmute your microphone, ask you to confirm 
your name and update your name as either public or press.  Select 
gallery view if you want see all the participants. 
 
If you have joined the meeting via telephone, your telephone 
number will appear on screen and will be displayed for all to see 
until the Host has confirmed your name and then they will rename 
your telephone number to either public or press. 
 

 

 Speaking at a Meeting  
 If you are registered to speak at the meeting and when it is your turn 

to address the Meeting, the Chairman will invite you to speak giving 
the Host the instruction to unmute your microphone and switch your 
video on (where appropriate) therefore please pause for a couple of 
seconds to ensure your microphone is on. 
 
Upon the conclusion of your speech/time limit, the Host will mute 
your microphone and turn off your video. 
 

 

 Meeting Etiquette for Registered Speakers - things to consider 
when speaking at public meetings on video 

 

  Background – the meeting is public and people will be able to 
see what is behind you therefore consider what you will have 
on display behind you. 

 Camera angle – sit front on, upright with the device in front of 
you. 

 Who else is in the room – make sure you are in a position 
where nobody will enter the camera shot who doesn’t want to 
appear in the public meeting.  

 Background noise – try where possible to minimise 
background noise. 

 Aim to join the meeting 15 minutes before it is due to start. 
 

 



  

 
 

 
Report No:  Public Agenda Item: YES 
   
Title: Consideration of the fit and proper status of the holder of a dual 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers’ Licence  
  
Wards 
Affected: 

All 

  
To: Licensing Sub-Committee On: 14th January 2021 
    
Key Decision: No   
   
Change to 
Budget: 

No Change to Policy 
Framework: 

No 
 

   

Contact Officer: Shaun Rackley 
 Telephone: 01803 208026 
  E.mail: Shaun.rackley@torbay.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
1. What we are trying to achieve 
 
1.1 This report asks Members to consider relevant facts relating to the holder of a 

Torbay Council issued dual Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers licence. 
This follows receipt of 1 speeding offence and 1 motoring offence during a 2 year 
period, which has left the licence holder on 9 current penalty points. Further to 
this, the licence holder has failed to meet specific requirements, as set out in the 
current Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2019, by virtue of 
having failed to inform Torbay Council of the penalty points. Members are 
requested therefore to determine on the facts laid before them, whether or not the 
Applicant remains a ‘fit and proper person’ to hold such a licence. 

 
2. Recommendation(s) for decision 
 
2.1 This matter must be determined on its individual merits and any supporting facts 

or testimony advanced at a hearing. Therefore, there is no recommendation. The 
options available to Members however, are highlighted in paragraph A3.1 of 
Annex 1 to this report. 

 
3. Key points and reasons for recommendations 
 
3.1 Under provision of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

(the 1976 Act), Torbay Council is the Licensing Authority in respect of Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles and drivers within Torbay. 

 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Shaun.rackley@torbay.gov.uk


  

 
 
3.2 Sections 51 and 59 of the 1976 Act, in conjunction with section 46 of the Town 

Police Clauses Act 1847, make provision for the licensing of drivers and state that 
a district council shall not grant a licence to drive a Private Hire or Hackney 
Carriage vehicle unless they are satisfied that the driver is a ‘fit and proper’ person 
to hold a driver’s licence. 

 
3.3 There is no judicially approved test of fitness and propriety and therefore it is the 

responsibility of Licensing Authorities to determine whether a driver, or an 
Applicant is indeed fit and proper to hold such a licence. In the absence of such a 
test, a number of practices have developed over time and have stood up to 
scrutiny in the Courts and are therefore commonly accepted amongst the majority 
of Licensing Authorities. 

 
3.4 Torbay Council has adopted a number of common practices for testing the ‘fit and 

proper’ status of drivers and applicants. One of these, is that they should possess 
and maintain a suitable driving ability and driving history.  

 
3.5 This report follows a review of the DVLA driver data base in respect of Mr Julian 

Lawrence-Ball, who holds a Torbay Council dual drivers’ licence number LD0326, 
where it was discovered on the 11th December 2020, Mr Lawrence-Ball had 
received 9 penalty points. These are 2 separate offences over a 2 year period. 
The most recent offence was for failing to give information as to the identity of a 
driver. Further to this, Mr Lawrence-Ball has failed to notify the Licensing Authority, 
as required by virtue of its Policy. 

 
3.6 Mr Lawrence-Ball was written to on the 11th December 2020 and requested to 

provide an explanation as to the events surrounding the DVLA points, as well as 
stating reasons as to why the Licensing Authority was not informed. This 
document can be found at Appendix 1. 

 
3.7 Relevant aspects of the Policy state: 
   

5.12 Where an existing licensed driver receives over 6 (six) endorsement/s or 
penalty points on their licence within each licensing year, the Licensing Authority 
will require that person to undertake and pass a DSA. If this is not obtained 
within 3 months of the notification to the Licensing Authority, then the existing 
licensed drivers badge will be suspended until the necessary driving standards 
assessment is completed and confirmation of this has been provided to the 
Licensing Authority. 
 
5.13 Where an existing licensed driver receives more than 9 (nine) penalty 
points on their driving licence that are current at any given time, that driver will 
be required to appear before a Licensing Sub-Committee. This will be in order to 
explain the circumstances and for consideration as to whether they remain a ‘fit 
and proper’ person to continue to hold a Torbay Council dual drivers licence.  

 
5.14 Drivers who fail to notify the Licensing Authority of any endorsements 
received may face disciplinary action, which could result in appearance before a 
Licensing Sub-Committee and/or suspension or revocation of the drivers licence 
issued to them.  
 

Page 5



  

5.20 The Licensing Authority at its discretion, may require specific training to be 
undertaken where deemed appropriate. This training may include disability 
awareness, manual handling, equalities awareness, or anything else as deemed 
appropriate by the Licensing Authority.  
 
6.4 Failure to inform the Licensing Authority within 5 working days of any 
convictions, cautions and fixed penalty notices during the licensing application 
and/or licensed period (i.e. once the licence is granted), may result in 
suspension or revocation of the drivers licence. Similarly, where convictions, 
cautions or fixed penalty notices are notified, depending on the nature of the 
infraction, this may result in suspension or revocation of the drivers licence.  
 
Appendix A: Taxi and PHV Licensing Criminal Convictions’ Policy  
2.2 In the case of a licensed driver being convicted of an offence involving 
dishonesty the Licensing Authority may refuse to renew, suspend or revoke the 
licence. If a licence is revoked, no further application will be considered until a 
period of at least three years from the date of conviction of this type has elapsed. 
 
Appendix A: Taxi and PHV Licensing Criminal Convictions’ Policy  
7.2 In the case of a licensed driver accumulating nine or more penalty points the 
Licensing Authority may refuse to renew, suspend or revoke the licence. If a 
licence is revoked, no further application will be considered until a period of at 
least 12 months free from convictions of this type has elapsed. A list of minor 
traffic offences can be seen in table 1. 
 

3.8 It is for the Licensing Sub-Committee to consider whether Mr Lawrence-Ball 
remains a ‘fit and proper person’ to hold a Torbay Council issued dual Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire drivers’ licence.  

 
3.9 There is a right of Appeal to the Magistrates’ Court as provided under section 61 

(3) of the 1976 Act against the Licensing Sub-Committee decision. Such an appeal 
must be lodged within 21 days from the date of a Notice following the decision. 

 
 
For more detailed information on this proposal please refer to the Supporting 
Information. 
 
Steve Cox 
Environmental Health Manager (Commercial) 

Page 6



  

Annex 1 - Supporting information  
 
 
A1. Introduction and history 
 
A1.1 Under provision of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

(the 1976 Act), Torbay Council is the Licensing Authority in respect of Hackney 
Carriages, Private Hire Vehicles and their drivers within Torbay. 

 
A1.2 Sections 51 (in respect of Private Hire drivers) and 59 (in respect of Hackney 

Carriage drivers) of the Act state that a district council shall not grant a licence to 
drive a Private Hire vehicle or Hackney Carriage unless they are satisfied that the 
driver is a ‘fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence’.  

 
A1.3 There is no judicially approved test of fitness and propriety and therefore it is the 

responsibility of Licensing Authorities to determine whether a driver, or an 
applicant is indeed fit and proper to hold such a licence. In the absence of such a 
test, a number of practices have developed over time and have stood up to 
scrutiny in the Courts and are therefore commonly accepted amongst the majority 
of Licensing Authorities. 

 
A1.4 Torbay Council has adopted a number of common practices for testing the ‘fit and 

proper’ status of drivers and applicants. One of these is that they should possess 
a suitable driving ability and driving history. 

 
A1.5 This report follows a review of the DVLA driver data base in respect of Mr 

Lawrence-Ball, where it was discovered that on 2 separate occasions over a 2 
year period. Mr Lawrence-Ball was convicted in respect of 1 speeding and 1 
motoring offence, receiving the following penalties: 

 

 13th May 2018 – SP30: Exceeding statutory speed limit on a public road – 
Penalty Points: 3 

 16th July 2020 – MS90: Failure to give information as to identity of driver – 
Penalty Points: 6 

 
In addition, it is noted that Mr Lawrence-Ball has failed to report these penalty 
points to the Licensing Authority, as required under its current Policy. 
 
Therefore, Mr Lawrence-Ball was written to on 11th December 2020 and requested 
to provide an explanation as to the events surrounding the penalty points, as well 
as stating reasons as to why the Licensing Authority was not informed.  
This document can be found at Appendix 1. 

 
A1.6 Mr Lawrence-Ball has responded by email to the letter of 11th December 2020 and 

acknowledged the DVLA points and advising he will follow with a full explanation 
in due course. This document can be found at Appendix 2. 

 
A1.7 Relevant excerpts of the Policy are highlighted in 3.7 of the report (above), where 

section 5.13 refers to matters where more than 9 penalty points are received. 
There is also a duplication within Appendix A: Taxi and PHV Licensing Criminal 
Convictions’ Policy, section 7.2, which highlights minor traffic offences and 
existing licensed drivers that accumulate 9 penalty points or more.  

 

Page 7



  

A1.8 Under section 5.12 of the Policy, it states: 
 
 5.12 Where an existing licensed driver receives over 6 (six) endorsement/s or 

penalty points on their licence within each licensing year, the Licensing Authority 
will require that person to undertake and pass a DSA 

 
 The Licensing Authority has not requested Mr Lawrence-Ball to undertake and 

pass the DSA as of yet. This is due to Mr Lawrence-Ball already undertaking the 
DSA as part of the application process, this was passed on 30th November 2018. 
There is also a greater concern that an accumulation of 9 penalty points, along 
with the seriousness of the most recent offence of failing to provide information as 
to the identity of a driver, questions whether Mr Lawrence-Ball remains a fit and 
proper person to hold a Torbay Council issued dual Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Drivers’ licence. 
This document can be found at Appendix 3. 

 
A1.9 Section 5.14 of the Policy, states: 
 

5.14 Drivers who fail to notify the Licensing Authority of any endorsements 
received may face disciplinary action, which could result in appearance before a 
Licensing Sub-Committee and/or suspension or revocation of the licence issued 
to them.  

 
 And 6.4 of the Policy, it states: 
 

 6.4 Failure to inform the Licensing Authority within 5 working days of any 
convictions, cautions and fixed penalty notices during the licensing application 
and/or licensed period (i.e. once the licence is granted) may result in suspension 
or revocation of the driver licence. Similarly, where convictions, cautions or fixed 
penalty notices are notified, depending on the nature of the infraction, this may 
result in suspension or revocation of the driver licence.  

 
A1.10 Of particular relevance in relation to one of the motoring offences Mr Lawrence-

Ball was convicted of, is section 2.2 of Appendix A: Taxi and PHV Licensing 
Criminal Convictions’ Policy, which states: 
2.2 In the case of a licensed driver being convicted of an offence involving 
dishonesty the Licensing Authority may refuse to renew, suspend or revoke the 
licence. If a licence is revoked, no further application will be considered until a 
period of at least three years from the date of conviction of this type has elapsed. 

 
A1.11 Mr Lawrence-Ball has formerly responded to the letter of the 11th December 2020 

and included mitigating circumstances and supporting information regarding the 
two offences. This document can be found at Appendix 4. 

 
A1.12 Members are requested to consider whether Mr Lawrence-Ball remains a ‘fit and 

proper person’ to hold a Torbay Council issued dual Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Drivers’ licence. 

  
A1.13 There is a right of Appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the Licensing Sub-

Committee decision. Such an appeal must be lodged within 21 days from the date 
of a Notice following the decision. 

 
 

Page 8



  

A2. Risk assessment of preferred option 
 
 
A2.1 Outline of significant key risks 
 
A2.1.1 There are two risks. The first risk to be considered is whether Mr Lawrence-Ball 

presents a risk to the general public should he continue to hold a licence to drive 
a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle. 

 
A2.1.2 The second risk relates to the potential for an appeal should Mr Lawrence-Ball’s 

licence be revoked or suspended and/or have additional conditions imposed. 
 
A3. Options 
 
A3.1 The options are: 
  

(i) To do nothing, if satisfied that Mr Lawrence-Ball remains a ‘fit and 
proper’ person to drive a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle 

(ii) To give a formal written warning 
(iii) To require additional training and/or to successfully undertake a 

Driving Standards test, or an equivalent higher standard test  
(iv) To suspend Mr Lawrence-Ball’s licence to drive a Hackney Carriage 

or Private Hire vehicle and to require that additional training and/or 
a Driving Standards, or the equivalent higher standard test is 
required 

(v) To revoke Mr Lawrence-Ball’s drivers licence on grounds that he is 
no longer considered to be a ‘fit and proper’ person to hold such a 
licence  

 
A4. Summary of resource implications 
 
A4.1 There are some resource implications if there is an Appeal to the Magistrates’ 

Court. 
 
A5. What impact will there be on equalities, environmental sustainability and 

crime and disorder? 
 
A5.1 There are no environmental sustainability issues, equalities or crime and disorder 

issues other than as outlines in this report.  
 
A6. Consultation and Customer Focus 
 
A6.1 There has been no public consultation on this matter and there is no requirement 

for the Licensing Sub-Committee to consult the public on this matter. 
 
A7. Are there any implications for other Business Units? 
 
A7.1 There are no implications for other business units. 
 
Documents available in members’ rooms 
 
None 
 

Appendices 
Page 9



  

 
Appendix 1 Letter to Mr Lawrence-Ball requesting further information about 

DVLA convictions dated 11th December 2020 
 
Appendix 2 Email from Mr Lawrence-Ball acknowledging DVLA points dated 11th 

December 2020 
 
Appendix 3 Driving Standards Assessment certificate dated 30th November 

2018 
 
Appendix 4 Letter from Mr Lawrence-Ball with supporting information dated 26th 

December 2020 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 

The following documents/files were used to compile this report: 
 
Torbay Council’s Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy 2019 

Page 10



Page 11

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2



Page 16



Page 17

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



Page 18

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



Page 19


	Agenda
	5 Consideration of the fit and proper status of the holder of a dual Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers’ Licence
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4


